
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 

7.30 pm 
Thursday 

6 December 2018 

Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Main Road, 

Romford RM1 3BD 

 
Members 8: Quorum 4 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Conservative Group 
(4) 

Residents’ Group 
(1) 

Upminster & Cranham  
Residents’ Group 

(1) 

Ray Best 
Jason Frost 

Maggie Themistocli 
Melvin Wallace (Chairman) 

 

Reg Whitney 
 

Linda Hawthorn 

Independent Residents 
Group 

(1) 

Labour Group 
(1) 

 

Graham Williamson Keith Darvill (Vice-Chair)  

 
 
 
 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Taiwo Adeoye 01708 433079, Richard Cursons 01708 432430 or Victoria Freeman 01708 

433862 
taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk    richard.cursons@onesource.co.uk    

victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk 
 

To register to speak at the meeting please call 01708 433100 
before 

 

Public Document Pack



Strategic Planning Committee, 6 December 2018 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 6 December 2018 

 
 

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 6 December 2018 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
 
These are the arrangements in case of fire or other events that might require the 
meeting room or building’s evacuation. (Double doors at the entrance to the Council 
Chamber and door on the right hand corner (marked as an exit). 
 
Proceed down main staircase, out the main entrance, turn left along front of building 
to side car park, turn left and proceed to the “Fire Assembly Point” at the corner of the 
rear car park.  Await further instructions. 
 
Development presentations 
I would like to inform everyone that Councillors will receive presentations on proposed 
developments, generally when they are at the pre-application stage. This is to enable 
Members of the committee to view the development before a planning application is 
submitted and to comment upon it. The development does not constitute an 
application for planning permission and any comments made upon it are provisional 
and subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the comments 
received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.   
 
Applications for decision 
I would like to remind members of the public that Councillors have to make decisions 
on planning applications strictly in accordance with planning principles. 
 
I would also like to remind members of the public that the decisions may not always 
be popular, but they should respect the need for Councillors to take decisions that will 
stand up to external scrutiny or accountability. 
 
Would everyone in the chamber note that they are not allowed to communicate with or 
pass messages to Councillors sitting on the Committee during the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) - receive. 

 
 

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 6 December 2018 

 
 

 

 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 
point of the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 

November 2018 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them. 
 
 

5 DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATIONS (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
 

6 PE/00508/2018 - SUNRISE, SERENA HOUSE (Pages 7 - 10) 

 
 

7 PE/00507/2018 - NEW PLYMOUTH AND NAPIER HOUSE, NEW ROAD, RAINHAM 

(Pages 11 - 14) 
 
 

8 PE/00213/2017 - JOINT VENTURE SCHEME (BRIDGE CLOSE, ROMFORD) (Pages 

15 - 20) 
 
 

9 APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION (Pages 21 - 24) 

 
 

10 P1152.18 - LAND AT CROW LANE, SANDGATE CLOSE (Pages 25 - 48) 

 
 

 
  Andrew Beesley 

Head of Democratic Services 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Main Road, Romford RM1 3BD 

8 November 2018 (7.30  - 9.30 pm) 
 
Present: 
 
COUNCILLORS 8 
 
Conservative Group 
 

Jason Frost, +Robby Misir, Maggie Themistocli and 
Melvin Wallace (Chairman) 
 

Residents’ Group 
 

Reg Whitney 
 

Upminster & Cranham 
Residents’ Group 

Linda Hawthorn 

Independent Residents 
Group 

Graham Williamson 
 

Labour Group 
 

Keith Darvill (Vice-Chair) 
 

 
 
An apology was received for the absence of Councillor Ray Best.  
+ Councillor Misir substituted for Councillor Best.  
 
Councillors David Durant, Ray Morgon, John Mylod and Paul McGeary were 
also present for the meeting. 
 
There were 25 members of the public present for the meeting. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency. 
 
Unless otherwise indicated all decisions were taken with no votes against. 
 
 
 
26 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
 

27 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 11 October 2018 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Strategic Planning Committee, 8 November 
2018 

 

 

 

28 PE00414/18 - 22-44 NORTH STREET ROMFORD - DEMOLITION OF 
EXISTING BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF 2-TIERED BUILDINGS TO 
PROVIDE 95 RESIDENTIAL AND 3 COMMERCIAL UNITS  
 
The Committee received a developer presentation from Lexus Planning 
 

 The revised proposed scheme ranged in height from 6 to 12 storeys, 
and provided 95 residential units, and approximately 373 sq. m of 
commercial floor space  
 

 The revised  scheme proposed 62 private and 33 affordable 
residential units  
 

 The revised scheme would essentially be car-free, with the provision 
of 10 flexible use disabled spaces, which could also be utilised for a 
car club; vehicular access to the site was from The Mews to the east. 

 

 Amenity space for the development would be created through the 
provision of a communal garden at level 5 of the lower building to the 
south, as well as private terraces and balconies.  

 
Members raised the following issues:   
 

 Whether comparison to buildings nearby which were outside of the 
Conservation Area was disingenuous 

 What the justification was for the proposed height, why so high? 

 Density of scheme. Why so high and dense? 

 Consultation with the Church.  What consultation had been undertaken?  
This should include the Civic Society  

 The principle of the car club was welcomed 

 The developer was invited to engage in the Romford Masterplan process 
 
 

29 PE/00492/18, PE/00508/18 AND PE/00507/18 - JOINT VENTURE THE 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING AND WATES RESIDENTIAL  
 
The Committee received a developer presentation from Kate Ives of Wates 
Residential. 
 
The 12 estates programme sought to develop the Council’s own land to 
deliver approximately 3,000 new homes over the next 10 years.  Wates 
were chosen as a development partner following a competition process 
which ran throughout 2017. Following the competition process the 
appointment of Wates as a development partner was approved by cabinet in 
January 2018.  
 
Councillor David Durant addressed the Committee. 
 
Members raised the following issues: 

Page 2



Strategic Planning Committee, 8 November 
2018 

 

 

 

 

 What green initiatives would be included in the scheme? Consider 
innovative recycling and refuse storage. 

 Whether there would be local marketing to Havering residents 

 Use of shared ownership within the tenure mix.   
 
 

30 P1701.17 - LAND AT RAINHAM BROADWAY - THE DEMOLITION OF 
EXISTING BUILDINGS AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF 57 HOMES 
COMPRISING A MIX OF 22 HOUSES AND 35 APARTMENTS WITH 
ASSOCIATED ACCESS ROADS, PARKING, HARD SURFACING, 
LANDSCAPING, BOUNDARY TREATMENTS, REFUSE STORES, AN 
ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION AND MEANS OF ACCESS TO AND FROM 
BROADWAY  
 
Councillor David Durant addressed the Committee. 
 
The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
Councillors Hawthorn, Whitney and Williamson voted against the resolution. 
 
 

31 QUARTERLY PLANNING PERFORMANCE UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Committee considered the report and NOTED its contents. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Development Presentations 

Introduction 

1. This part of the agenda is for the committee to receive presentations on 

proposed developments, particularly when they are at the pre-application stage.  

2. Although the reports are set out in order on the agenda, the Chair may reorder 

the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a specific 

application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

3. The following information and advice only applies to reports in this part of the 

agenda. 

Advice to Members 

4. These proposed developments are being reported to committee to enable 

Members of the committee to view them at an early stage and to comment 

upon them. They do not constitute applications for planning permission at this 

stage (unless otherwise stated in the individual report) and any comments 

made are provisional and subject to full consideration of any subsequent 

application and the comments received following consultation, publicity and 

notification.  

5. Members of the committee will need to pay careful attention to the probity rules 

around predisposition, predetermination and bias (set out in the Council’s 

Constitution). Failure to do so may mean that the Member will not be able to 

participate in the meeting when any subsequent application is considered. 

Public speaking and running order 

6. The Council’s Constitution only provides for public speaking rights for those 

applications being reported to Committee in the “Applications for Decision” 

parts of the agenda. Therefore, reports on this part of the agenda do not attract 

public speaking rights, save for Ward Members. 

7. The items on this part of the agenda will run as follows: 

a. Officer introduction of the main issues 

b. Developer presentation (15 minutes) 

c. Ward Councillor speaking slot (5 minutes) 

d. Committee questions 

e. Officer roundup 

 

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Late information 

8. Any relevant material received since the publication of this part of the agenda, 

concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in the Update Report. 

Recommendation 

9. The Committee is not required to make any decisions with respect to the 

reports on this part of the agenda. The reports are presented as background 

information. 

 
 

Page 6



   

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
6 December 2018 

 

Pre-Application Reference:  PE/00508/18 

 

Location: Serena Court, Solar Court & Sunrise 

Court, Parkhill Close and Sunrise 

Avenue 

 

Ward:      St Andrew’s 

 

Description:  Redevelopment of Serena Court, Solar 
Court & Sunrise Court, to provide 178 
new residential dwellings.  

 

Case Officer:    Jacob Lawrence  

 

 
1 BACKGROUND  

  

1.1 This item follows an initial presentation to the 8th November 2018 Strategic 

Planning Committee (SPC) which provided an overview of the joint venture 

partnership between Havering and Wates Residential. The joint venture is 

currently working to deliver the first phase of the 12 sites estate regeneration 

programme. This programme seeks to develop the Council’s own land to 

deliver approximately 3,000 new homes over the next 10 years. 

 

1.2 The proposals for the of the redevelopment of Serena Court, Solar Court & 

Sunrise Court are now at a sufficiently advanced stage to be reported the 

SPC to enable members to be briefed and make comments on the proposal 

as it is developed in further detail. The pre-application proposals referred to in 

this report are not yet subject to an application for planning permission. Any 

comments made in response to the developer’s presentation are provisional 

and subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the 

comments received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

2 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

 

Proposal  

2.1 The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings and structures on the site 

and construct a residential development to provide for the specific needs of 

residents over the age of 55 currently proposed to comprise the following: 

 

 5  blocks of varying heights (between 3/4/5/6/8/10 storeys) 

 178 new homes proposed  providing 26% affordable housing and 69% private 

housing. 

 88 car parking space, including dedicated cycle/scooter storage. 

 Dedicated laybys for drop off and emergency vehicles 

 All units would be oversized i.e. they will meet the larger minimum standards 

required for wheelchair units and will consist of 1 and 2 bed dwellings – 

designed to attract elderly ‘downsizers’. 

 Biodiversity enhancements through new planting 

 Community space to facilitate interaction among residents 

 

Site and Surroundings  

 

2.2 The site covers approximately 1 hectare and consists of single and two storey 

sheltered residential accommodation for the elderly (55 units, Council-owned), 

facing mainly west onto Parkhill Close and Sunrise Avenue. The eastern edge 

of the site backs onto residential gardens as does the southern edge, 

separated by a private road. Although the frontage on Parkhill Close and 

Sunrise Avenue is continuous for pedestrians, the roads are separated by 

bollards to prevent drive through. 

 

The site lies opposite (to the north and west) three residential blocks of 

between 12 and 13 storeys in height surrounded by parking and landscaping. 

Two of the blocks are served to the south from Sunrise Avenue, the other to 

the north from Parkhill Close. An allotment is on the western side Parkhill 

Close, to the north of the subject site. Harrow Lodge Park is prominent in the 

views west from the site which contributes to this location’s  character, 

otherwise the area is predominantly residential. The nearest bus stops are 

located approximately 10 minutes walk away on Abbs Cross Lane. The PTAL 

rating for the area is 1b. There are quite significant level changes on the site 

 

 Planning History 

2.3 None relevant to these proposals 

  

 

Page 8



3 CONSULTATION 

 

3.1 At this stage, it is intended that the following will be consulted regarding any 

subsequent planning applications: 

 Thames Water  

 Network Rail (Statutory Consultee) 

 Environment Agency 

 Greater London Authority (Statutory Consultee) 

 Havering PCT 

 Fire Brigade 

 National Grid – Gas/Electricity 

 Historic England (Statutory Consultee) 

 Transport for London (Statutory Consultee) 

 Natural England 

 National Air Traffic Services 

 

4 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

4.1 In accordance with planning legislation, the developer has begun consultation 

with the local community on these proposals as part of the pre-application 

process. 

 

5 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 

5.1 The main planning issues raised by the proposal that the committee must 

consider when detailed proposals come forward are: 

 Principle of development 

 Density, Scale and Site Layout 

 Design Quality  

 Parking and Highway Issues 

 Housing Mix/Affordable Housing 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 

5.2 Additional Issues  

  

A number of other matters will need to be addressed as part of the pre-

application process. Securing a policy compliant response to these issues will 

be fundamental to the success of the schemes as they develop in form and 

layout.  These include the following (list not in order of priority or exclusive): 

 

 Residential Quality 

 Sustainability, energy efficiency and climate change mitigation 

 Impact on local Education provision 

 Environmental Impacts 

Page 9



 Archaeology 

 Biodiversity 

 Flooding and Drainage 

 Infrastructure and Utilities 

 Healthcare 

 Open Space and Recreation 

 

In all respects the redevelopment of  Serena Court, Solar Court & Sunrise 

Court, Parkhill Close and Sunrise Avenue will be expected to achieve the 

highest quality of development both internally and externally and pay full 

regard to planning policy requirements.  

 

The Committee will have a further opportunity to review the proposals when 

the applicant returns to present more developed proposals in due course.   

 

Financial and Other Mitigation 

 

5.3 The proposals would likely attract a range of section 106 contributions to 

mitigate the impact of the development. This will be matter for further 

discussion as the proposal evolves. 

 

5.4 The Council is undertaking work to put a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

in place to mitigate the impact of development in the borough by contributing 

to the cost of Infrastructure necessary to support such development. This 

development would attract CIL contributions if an implementable consent is in 

place after the CIL is in place. This will be determined by the final quantum of 

development.  

 

Conclusions 

5.5 The proposals are still in the pre-application stage and additional design work 

will be undertaken following this presentation to committee. Once the scheme 

is developed in further detail the proposal will be presented again to the 

Strategic Planning Committee for further comment.  

 

 

Page 10



   

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
6 December 2018 

 

Pre-Application Reference:  PE/00507/18 

 

Location: Napier House & New Plymouth House, 

Dunedin Road, Rainham 

 

Ward:      South Hornchurch 

 

Description:  Redevelopment of Napier House & New 
Plymouth House to provide 202 new 
residential dwellings.  

 

Case Officer:    Jacob Lawrence  

 

 
1 BACKGROUND  

  

1.1 This item follows an initial presentation to the 8th November 2018 Strategic 

Planning Committee (SPC) which provided an overview of the joint venture 

partnership between Havering and Wates Residential. The joint venture is 

currently working to deliver the first phase of the 12 sites estate regeneration 

programme. This programme seeks to develop the Council’s own land to 

deliver approximately 3,000 new homes over the next 10 years. 

 

1.2 The proposals for the of the redevelopment of  Napier House & New Plymouth 

House are now at a sufficiently advanced stage to be reported the SPC to 

enable members to be briefed and make comments on the proposal as it is 

developed in further detail. The pre-application proposals referred to in this 

report are not yet subject to an application for planning permission. Any 

comments made in response to the developer’s presentation are provisional 

and subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the 

comments received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



2 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

 

Proposal  

2.1 The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings and structures on the site 

and construct a residential development currently proposed to comprise the 

following: 

 

 Three distinct blocks of varying heights (between 3/4/5/7/9/11 storeys) 

 202 homes proposed providing 64% affordable and 36% market housing. 

 86 car parking spaces below a podium level 

 381 cycle parking spaces  

 Significant amenity provision including three courtyard gardens  

 New open space with cycle link. 

 New opportunities for play space within all planned green spaces  

 Enhanced for sustainability and biodiversity. 
 

Site and Surroundings  

 

2.2 The site consists of two 13 storey residential flatted blocks comprising 97 

units, of which 87 are owned by the Council, the other 10 being leasehold. 

The site incorporates three car parks accessed off Dunedin Road, one of 

which is raised above ground floor level and also a small children’s play area 

is located between the two towers. A cycle and pedestrian route runs north to 

south through the eastern portion of the site, the former connecting the New 

Road national cycle route to the local cycle network serving Romford and Elm 

Park northwards of this site via Gisborne Gardens. The southern boundary 

faces onto New Road, enclosed by boundary fencing and a row of mature 

trees.   

 

 The site is bounded by playing fields to the east and 2 storey terraced housing 

to the west which front onto New Road and the gardens of which run the full 

depth of this site to Dunedin Road.  The area north is predominantly 

residential, to the south the area is mostly industrial (some pockets of recent 

residential development) with the River Thames beyond. The area to the 

south and west on New Road is earmarked for significant regeneration with 

3000+ new homes proposed including a new mixed use centre and train 

station at Beam Park. The nearest rail station is Rainham (0.6 miles distance) 

and there are bus routes and a cycle path on New Road. The PTAL score for 

the site is 2. The site is in a Flood Zone 2 and the southern part of the site sits 

in the outer/middle zone of a high pressure gas pipeline.   

 

 Planning History 

2.3 None relevant to these proposals 

Page 12



  

3 CONSULTATION 

 

3.1 At this stage, it is intended that the following will be consulted regarding any 

subsequent planning applications: 

 Thames Water  

 Network Rail (Statutory Consultee) 

 Environment Agency 

 Greater London Authority (Statutory Consultee) 

 Havering PCT 

 Fire Brigade 

 National Grid – Gas/Electricity 

 Historic England (Statutory Consultee) 

 Transport for London (Statutory Consultee) 

 Natural England 

 National Air Traffic Services 

 

4 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

4.1 In accordance with planning legislation, the developer has begun consultation 

with the local community on these proposals as part of the pre-application 

process. 

 

5 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 

5.1 The main planning issues raised by the proposal that the committee must 

consider when detailed proposals come forward are: 

 Principle of development 

 Density, Scale and Site Layout 

 Design Quality  

 Parking and Highway Issues 

 Housing Mix/Affordable Housing 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 

5.2  Additional Issues  

  

A number of other matters will need to be addressed as part of the pre-

application process. Securing a policy compliant response to these issues will 

be fundamental to the success of the schemes as they develop in form and 

layout.  These include the following (list not in order of priority or exclusive): 

 

 Residential Quality 

 Sustainability, energy efficiency and climate change mitigation 

 Impact on local Education provision 

Page 13



 Environmental Impacts 

 Archaeology 

 Biodiversity 

 Flooding and Drainage 

 Infrastructure and Utilities 

 Healthcare 

 Open Space and Recreation 

 

In all respects the redevelopment of Napier House and New Plymouth House 

will be expected to achieve the highest quality of development both internally 

and externally and pay full regard to planning policy requirements.  

 

The Committee will have a further opportunity to review the proposals when 

the applicant returns to present more developed proposals in due course.   

 

Financial and Other Mitigation 

 

5.3 The proposals would likely attract a range of section 106 contributions to 

mitigate the impact of the development. This will be matter for further 

discussion as the proposal evolves. 

 

5.4 The Council is undertaking work to put a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

in place to mitigate the impact of development in the borough by contributing 

to the cost of Infrastructure necessary to support such development. This 

development would attract CIL contributions if an implementable consent is in 

place after the CIL is in place. This will be determined by the final quantum of 

development.  

 

Conclusions 

5.5 The proposals are still in the pre-application stage and additional design work 

will be undertaken following this presentation to committee. Once the scheme 

is developed in further detail the proposal will be presented again to the 

Strategic Planning Committee for further comment.  

 

 

Page 14



 

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
6 December 2018 

 

 

Pre-Application Reference:  PE/00213/2017 

 

Location: BRIDGE CLOSE, ROMFORD 

 

Ward:      ROMFORD TOWN 

 

Description: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS 

AND ERECTION OF UP TO 1070 HOMES, 

3FE PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH 

ASSOCIATED NURSERY, HEALTH HUB, 

PEDESTRIAN/ CYCLE BRIDGE OVER 

RIVER ROM, VEHICULAR ACCESS TO 

WATERLOO ROAD, PUBLIC OPEN 

SPACE AREAS, RELOCATION OF 

HAVERING ISLAMIC CULTURAL 

CENTRE, EXISTING BUSINESSES/ 

RESIDENTIAL  AND AMBULANCE 

STATION  

 

Case Officer:    WILLIAM ALLWOOD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 

 

1 BACKGROUND  

  

1.1 This proposed development is being presented to enable Members of the 

Strategic Committee to view it before a planning application is submitted and 

to comment upon it. The development does not constitute an application for 

planning permission and any comments made upon it are provisional and 

subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the comments 

received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.  

 

1.2 These proposals have been the subject of discussions since 2016, but latterly 

pre-application meetings with Officers have taken place on the 16th October 

2018, and the 15th November 2018, with further meetings arranged as part of 

a Planning Performance Agreement. A pre-application meeting also took 

place with the GLA on the 08th November 2018.  

 

1.3 The scheme has continued to be developed following feedback from the pre-

application meetings.  

 

1.4 The proposed development is a Joint Venture between the London Borough 

of Havering, and First Base. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

2 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

  

2.1      Initial Proposals 

 

2.2 These proposals are continuing to evolve as discussions continue, but the 

Development Brief as identified in accordance with the Joint Venture Business 

Plan states that the scheme should deliver the  following: 

 

 1,070 new homes 

 3FE Primary school, with associated Pre-School Nursery 

 Health Hub (1,662 sq.m) 

 New pedestrian/cycle bridge over River Rom 

 East-West connection with new crossing on Waterloo Road 

 New public open spaces for local and wider community including space for       

children to play 

 

2.3     Site and Surroundings  

 

 The proposed site is located to the south of the London Liverpool Street to 

Colchester main railway line, and to the east of Waterloo Road, which 

includes residential content; the Havering Islamic Cultural Centre (HICC) 

faces onto Waterloo Road. The southern boundary of the site is to the rear of 

the Ambulance Station and Oldchurch Road, which again includes residential 

content; the eastern boundary is formed by the River Rom. 

 

 The site is highly accessible to public transport and other services; it is 500 

metres (12 minutes’ walk) to the Romford railway station and has a PTAL of 

6a. 

 

Page 17



 

2.4      Planning History 

 

2.5 None directly relevant to these proposals  

 

2.6 Planning Policy  

 

2.7 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 

 London Plan 2016 

 Draft London Plan 2018 

London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and Development Control Policies 

DPD 2008  

 Romford Area Action Plan DPD 2008 -  ROMSSA2 – Bridge Close 

 London Borough of Havering Proposed Submission Local Plan 2016 – 2031 

 

 3 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 

3.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the Committee must 

consider are: 

  

 Principle of development 

 Density and Site Layout 

 High Quality Design 

 Housing provision, including affordable housing 

 Regeneration 

 Permeability and highways matters   

 Relocation of existing uses, including the existing businesses/ residential, the 

Havering Islamic Cultural Centre and Ambulance Station  

 Mitigating flood risk 

 Archaeology 

 Microclimate 

 Sustainable Design and Construction 

 Secured by Design 

Page 18



 Servicing Management 

 

3.2       Financial and Other Mitigation 

 

3.3 Any subsequent planning application will be supported by a package of 

measures secured under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or 

the Community Infrastructure Levy (as appropriate), to mitigate impacts of the 

proposed development . 

 
 
Conclusions 

 

3.4 The proposed development has been considered recently at two pre-

application meetings with Officers at London Borough of Havering (LBH), and 

a meeting with the GLA. The evolution of the scheme detail is at a relatively 

early stage, but main parameters and details are starting to evolve. Further 

discussions will take place with the GLA and Officers of LBH, in accordance 

with the agreed Planning Performance Agreement. 

 

3.5 It is likely that this scheme will come back to this Committee for further review 

as part of the continuing pre-application engagement in the spring of 2019. 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Applications for Decision 

Introduction 

1. In this part of the agenda are reports on strategic planning applications for 

determination by the committee.  

2. Although the reports are set out in order on the agenda, the Chair may reorder 

the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a specific 

application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

3. The following information and advice only applies to reports in this part of the 

agenda. 

Advice to Members 

Material planning considerations 

4. The Committee is required to consider planning applications against the 

development plan and other material planning considerations. 

5. The development plan for Havering comprises the following documents: 

 London Plan March 2016 

 Core Strategy and Development Control Policies (2008) 

 Site Allocations (2008) 

 Romford Area Action Plan (2008) 

 Joint Waste Development Plan (2012) 

6. Decisions must be taken in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

requires the Committee to have regard to the provisions of the Development 

Plan, so far as material to the application; any local finance considerations, so 

far as material to the application; and any other material considerations. 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the 

Committee to make its determination in accordance with the Development Plan 

unless material planning considerations support a different decision being 

taken. 

7. Under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 

which affects listed buildings or their settings, the local planning authority must 

have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or 

any features of architectural or historic interest it possesses. 

8. Under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



which affects a conservation area, the local planning authority must pay special 

attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 

appearance of the conservation area. 

9. Under Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in considering 

whether to grant planning permission for any development, the local planning 

authority must ensure, whenever it is appropriate, that adequate provision is 

made, by the imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees. 

10. In accordance with Article 35 of the Development Management Procedure 

Order 2015, Members are invited to agree the recommendations set out in the 

reports, which have been made based on the analysis of the scheme set out in 

each report. This analysis has been undertaken on the balance of the policies 

and any other material considerations set out in the individual reports. 

Non-material considerations 

11. Members are reminded that other areas of legislation cover many aspects of 

the development process and therefore do not need to be considered as part of 

determining a planning application. The most common examples are: 

 Building Regulations deal with structural integrity of buildings, the physical 

performance of buildings in terms of their consumption of energy, means of 

escape in case of fire, access to buildings by the Fire Brigade to fight fires 

etc. 

 Works within the highway are controlled by Highways Legislation. 

 Environmental Health covers a range of issues including public nuisance, 

food safety, licensing, pollution control etc. 

 Works on or close to the boundary are covered by the Party Wall Act. 

 Covenants and private rights over land are enforced separately from 

planning and should not be considered. 

Local financial considerations 

12. In accordance with Policy 6.5 of the London Plan (2015) the Mayor of London 

has introduced a London wide Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to fund 

CrossRail. 

13. Other forms of necessary infrastructure (as defined in the CIL Regulations) and 

any mitigation of the development that is necessary will be secured through a 

section106 agreement. Where these are necessary, it will be explained and 

specified in the agenda reports. 

 

 

Page 22



Public speaking and running order 

14. The Council’s Constitution allows for public speaking on these items in 

accordance with the Constitution and the Chair’s discretion. 

15. The items on this part of the agenda will run as follows: 

a. Officer introduction of the development 

b. Registered Objector(s) speaking slot (5 minutes) 

c. Responding Applicant speaking slot (5 minutes) 

d. Councillor(s) speaking slots (5 minutes) 

e. Cabinet Member Speaking slot (5 minutes) 

f. Officer presentation of the material planning considerations 

g. Committee questions and debate 

h. Committee decision 

 

Late information 

16. Any relevant material received since the publication of this part of the agenda, 

concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in the Update Report. 

Recommendation 

17. The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached report(s). 

  

Page 23



 
 

Page 24



 

 Strategic Planning 
Committee 
6 December 2018  

 

Application Reference:   P1152.18 

 

Location:     Land at Crow Lane / Sandgate Close 

Romford 

 

Ward:      Brooklands  

 

Description: Redevelopment of the site provide 82 

dwellings, together with new access 

junctions, associated car parking, 

landscape and infrastructure works 

 

Case Officer:    Jacob Lawrence  

 

Reason for Report to Committee: Given the planning history of the site and 

nature of the proposal, the Assistant 

Director Planning considers committee 

consideration to be necessary. 

 
1 BACKGROUND  

 

1.1 The application site has been subject to two previous refused applications and 

subsequently dismissed appeals under application ref. P1161.16 and ref. 

P0587.17.  

 

1.2 The previous applications both sought to deliver 150 dwellings across the site 

and were principally refused due to the then Regulatory Planning Committee 

concluding that the height, bulk and mass of the proposals would result in an 

excessively dense over development of the site. It was also considered that 

such an excessively dense development would result in harm to the amenity 

of future occupiers and local character. Further secondary concerns over 

noise to future residents were raised when the first application under ref.  

P1161.16 was refused, however, this issue was overcome through the second 

refused scheme under ref. P0587.17. Both the previous applications were 

also refused due to the absence of a legal agreement to secure affordable 

housing and education contributions.  The refusals were upheld by the 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



planning inspectorate through dismissed appeals. When dismissing the 

appeals the planning inspectorate concluded that the site could not 

accommodate the height and overall density of the 150 unit developments 

proposed.    

 

1.3 Following these refused applications, the applicant has worked with officers to 

develop a significantly reduced scheme in terms of scale of built form and 

overall unit numbers. The subject application now seeks to deliver 82 

dwellings, of which 48 would be family sized houses.  As such, the subject 

application now represents a house led scheme which has enabled a 

significant reduction in overall built form when compared to the previous 

refused applications.  Further to this, the proposal is now supported by 20% 

on site affordable housing provision in addition to agreed contributions of 

£492,000 towards education provision and £154,548 towards the carbon 

offset fund.  

 

1.3 Given the parameters established through the previous refused applications 

and dismissed appeals the key consideration for members relates to whether 

the amended proposal being considered under this application has sufficiently 

overcome the previous reasons for refusal.  

 

2 SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 The proposed redevelopment of the long standing vacant site to provide 82 

high quality residential units, including 16 affordable units, would make an 

important contribution to housing delivery within the borough. Furthermore, it 

is acknowledged that the site no longer serves an employment purpose. 

Bringing the vacant site back into use for residential development would fully 

accord with the sustainable development directive provided by the NPPF 

2018.  

 

2.2 The approach to site layout, height and massing represents a sensitive and 

well considered approach that successfully respects local character whilst 

safeguarding neighbouring amenity.  Policy compliant levels of internal 

floorspace, amenity space, car parking and cycle parking have been 

incorporated into the scheme.  

 

2.3  When considered in comparison to the previously refused applications the 

proposal represents a significant step change in the approach taken to the 

development of the site. These significant amendments have enabled the 

proposals to overcome the previous reasons for refusal and achieve a high 

degree of compliance with both the adopted and emerging development plan.  

 

Page 26



2.4     The recommended conditions and heads of terms would ensure the positive 

elements of the scheme advanced by the applicant are delivered on site in 

addition to ensuring the impacts of the development would be suitably 

mitigated. 

 

3 RECOMMENDATION 

 

3.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to: 

  

 The prior completion of a legal agreement to secure the following planning 
obligations:  
 

1. Affordable Housing  20% (the entirety of proposed block C)  
All Affordable Housing units to be provided at an intermediate tenure and 
first offered to a Registered Provider (RP) at a minimum split of 50:50 in 
favour of discounted market rent over shared ownership.  

2. Contribution of £492,000.00 towards education provision.  
3. Contribution of £154,548.00 towards the carbon offset fund  
4. Restriction on parking permits for residential occupiers. 
5. Early stage affordable housing review mechanism 

 
3.2 That the Assistant Director of Planning is delegated authority to negotiate the 

legal agreement indicated above. 
 

Page 27



Conditions 
 
1. Time limit 
2. In accordance with approved drawings 
3. Material samples  
4. Landscaping  
5. Car parking plan                                                                               
6. Cycle storage 
7. Travel Plan  
8. Pedestrian visibility splay to access 
9. Highway works  
10. Construction Method Statement and Construction Logistics Plan 
11. Construction hours  
12. Wheel Washing  
13. Secured by Design  
14. Delivery and Servicing Plan  
15. Energy Statement compliance. 
16. Details of external lighting  
17. Noise protection  
18. Surface Water Drainage  
19. Tree protection measures  
20. Wheelchair Adaptable Dwellings 
21. Water Efficiency. 
22 Window and balcony strategy  
23. Contaminated land  
24. Removal of permitted development rights.  
25. Boundary treatments  
 
 
Informatives 

  
1. Fee required for approval of details  
2.  Highway approval required  
3.  Proximity of National Grid apparatus. 
4.  Proximity of Network Rail’s operational railway infrastructure  
5.  Secure by design  
6.  Street naming and numbering  
7.  Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
8.  Planning obligations  

 9.   NPPF positive and proactive 
 
 
3.4 That, if by 6 months from the date of committee the legal agreement has not 

been completed, the Head of Planning is delegated authority to refuse 
planning permission. 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



4 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

  

Proposal 

4.1 The application is seeking planning permission for the redevelopment of the 

site to provide 82 dwellings, together with new access junctions, associated 

car parking, landscape and infrastructure works. The proposal would deliver a 

mix of residential units as follows:  

 Five  3 bedroom (5 person) houses 

 Forty-three 4 bedroom (7 person) houses 

 Nine  2 bedroom (4 person) apartments 

 Nine  3 bedroom (4 person) apartments 
 Five 1 bedroom (2 person) apartments 

 Eleven 2 bedroom (3 person) apartments 

4.2 The proposed dwelling mix outlined above would incorporate 11% wheelchair 

accessible dwellings and 20% affordable housing.  

 

4.3 In terms of car parking provision the proposal incorporates 130 car parking 

spaces of which 9 would be wheelchair accessible. In terms of the car parking 

ratio it proposed that flatted dwellings would be assigned 1 space whilst the 

houses would be assigned 2 spaces and all wheelchair accessible units 

assigned 1 space.  This level of car parking provision equates to a ratio of 1.6 

spaces per unit.  

 

4.4 With respect to massing, the proposal represents a house led scheme with 

these family sized dwellings to be provided through a series of terraces 

running both north to south and east to west. The proposed terraced housing 

would extend to a maximum prevailing height of 2 storeys, of which the larger 

dwellings would benefit from a generous pitched roof and purpose built roof 

level of accommodation.  In addition to the proposed terraced houses the 

proposal incorporates three flatted blocks along the eastern periphery of the 

site with Blocks A and B extending to a maximum height of 3 storeys and 

Block C projecting to four storeys.  

 

4.5 All of the units would have either a private rear garden or balcony and all units 

benefit from at least dual aspect layouts. 

  

4.6 In terms of access and servicing the site layout allows for access primarily via 

3  main points of entry off Sandgate Close in addition to 3 additional car park 

access points. Direct vehicle access is provided to the terraced houses 

fronting Crow Lane.  In addition to access and parking the proposed site 

layout incorporates a communal greenspace which encompasses and area of 

approximately 570 square metres.  

 

Page 29



4.7  A range of passive design features and demand reduction measures are 

proposed to reduce the carbon emissions of the proposed development in 

addition to the agreed carbon offset fund contribution.  

 
 

 Site and Surroundings 

4.8 The application site lies on the northern side of Crow Lane, circa 1km to the 

south-west of Romford town centre and the railway station.  The site can be 

accessed from Crow Lane and Sandgate Close, as existing, and forms a 

rough rectangle, measuring 1.5ha in size.  The site is currently vacant 

although previously was used by National Grid in association with the gas 

works.   

 

4.9 The site is bound to the north by an embankment to the railway line and its 

associated infrastructure.  To the east of the site lies Sandgate Close, beyond 

which is the Royal Mail Romford Sorting Office.  To the south is Crow Lane, 

beyond which is Romford cemetery.  And, directly west of the site, separated 

by a row of trees and shrubs, lies the rear gardens of the residential 

properties in Beechfield Gardens. 

4.10 The application site does not form part of a conservation area, and is not 

located within the immediate vicinity of any listed buildings.  The site forms 

part of a secondary employment area although it is noted that, as part of the 

Employment Land Review undertaken by the Council in 2015, this site was 

recommended as being suitable for de-designation and suitable for a 

residential led re-development. Further to this, the site is not designated for 

any employment use within the emerging local plan.  

 

Planning History 

4.11 The following planning decisions are relevant to the application: 

 

 Application ref. P0587.17 Re-development of the site to provide 150 
dwellings, together with new access junctions, associated car parking, 
landscape and infrastructure works -Refused 08/02/2017. Subsequent 

appeal dismissed.  
 

 Application ref: P1161.16 – Re-development of the site to provide 150 
dwellings, together with new access junctions, associated car parking, 
landscape and infrastructure works- Refused 06/07/2017. Subsequent 
appeal dismissed. 
 

 Application ref: P0989.14 - Change of use to provide a temporary car 
park for up to 290 spaces to serve Queen's Hospital employees, 

Page 30



together with revised access and associated infrastructure - Approved 
03/10/2014 

 

 Application ref: P0607.11 - Change of use of land and positioning of 
100 containers plus open storage for individual and business users - 
Approved 10/06/2011 

 

 Application ref: P1521.10 - Proposed site remediation works - 
Approved 14/01/2011 

 

5 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

5.1 The views of the Planning Service are expressed in the MATERIAL 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 

 

5.2 The following were consulted regarding the application: 

 

 Statutory Consultees  

 Essex and Suffolk Water: No objection  

Cadent Gas: No objection 

National Grid : No response  

Network Rail : No response  

Metropolitan Police: No objection subject to recommended conditions  

London Fire Brigade : No objection 

EPN Network Planning: Object on party wall grounds (Officers note that this is 

not a material planning consideration).  

Romford Civic Society : No response  

Natural England: No comment  

The Environment Agency: No response  

British Pipe Line Agency: No objection  

Network Rail : No response  

LBH Education: No objection subject to education contribution. 

LBH Environmental Health: No objection subject to recommended conditions 

LBH Highways: No objection subject to conditions and planning obligation 

LBH Highway Street Management: No objection  

LBH Waste & Recycling : No objection  

LBH Housing: No objection  

 

 

 

6 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

6.1 In accordance with planning legislation, the developer has consulted the local 

community on these proposals as part of the pre-application process. 

 

7 LOCAL REPRESENTATION 

Page 31



7.1 A total of 94 neighbouring properties were notified about the application and 

invited to comment and was advertised via site notices and in the local press.  

 

7.2 The number of representations received from neighbours, local groups etc in 

response to notification and publicity of the application were as follows: 

 

No of individual responses:  4 of which 3 supported and 1 (Royal Mail) 

provided feedback but did not object to the 

scheme overall 

 

Petitions received:   None.  

 

 

Representations 

7.3 The following issues were raised in representations that are material to the 

determination of the application, and they are addressed in substance in the 

next section of this report: 

 

Support Comments 

 The proposal would improve the area and it would be nice to have a new 

development with low rise houses and landscaping on the site. 

 It would be positive to have a suitable development as opposed to current 

waste ground.  

 Thankfully Hollybrook have kept local neighbours involved.  

 The new plans are much better than the previous proposals.  

 

Royal Mail Feedback 

 Royal Mail met with the applicant, Hollybrook Homes prior to the 

application being submitted, where the layout of the plans was discussed. 

Royal Mail support Hollybrook’s proposals to redevelop the site for 

residential purposes.  

 The sole concern is to ensure the ongoing integrity of Royal Mail’s 

business and protect its long-term viability. We understand that Hollybrook 

Homes have taken measures to protect the amenity of future residents 

from Royal Mail’s operations, and  therefore Royal Mail seeks to ensure 

those measures are secured and enforced by way of planning conditions. 

 Suggested conditions relate to balcony treatment, window treatments/ 

fixed glazing, securing mechanical ventilation, and details of boundary 

treatments. 

 Question the need for the number of vehicle access points proposed.  

 

Procedural issues 

7.4 No procedural issues were raised in representations. 

Page 32



 

8  MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

8.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must 

consider are: 

 Principle of Development 

 Density 

 Design, Massing and Streetscene 

 Quality of residential accommodation 

 Housing Mix and Affordable Housing 

 Neighbouring amenity impacts 

 Parking and Highways Issues 

 Environmental Issues 

 Education  

 

8.2 Principle of Development 

8.3 Policy CP1 of the LDF states, as a headline objective, that a minimum of 535 

new homes will be built in Havering each year.  Table 3.1 of the London Plan 

supersedes this target and increases it to a minimum ten year target for 

Havering (2015-2025) of 11,701 new homes or 1,170 new homes each year.  

Ensuring an adequate housing supply to meet local and sub-regional housing 

need is important in making Havering a place where people want to live and 

where local people are able to stay and prosper.  Expanding on this, policy 

CP2 aims to ensure that sustainable, attractive, mixed and balanced 

communities are created. 

8.4 As outlined previously in this report, this site forms part of a secondary 

employment area.  Policy DC10 of the LDF states that within secondary 

employment areas, planning permission for non B use classes will only be 

granted in exceptional circumstances and when the applicant has 

demonstrated the following: 

• the site is not needed to meet future business needs with regard to the 

difference between the current supply of employment land and the demand for 

employment land over the plan period; 

• the site is not considered fit for purpose when assessed against the economic, 

planning and property market criteria provided in Appendix A of Havering’s 

Employment Land Review 2006; and 

• the site has proved very difficult to dispose of for B1 (b) (c), B2 and B8 uses. 

8.5 The Employment Land Review undertaken by the Council in 2015 assessed 

the Crow Lane designation and recommended that all but the 2.4ha Royal 

Mail site could be released from industrial/employment use.  The Employment 

Page 33



Land Review concluded that there was an over-provision of employment land 

in the Borough and recommended releasing this site from such use as there is 

limited prospect of the site being re-developed for industrial uses.  The 

position was confirmed in the marketing evidence submitted by the applicant 

in support of the previous applications. 

8.6 Further to the policy support outlined above officers can confirm that the 

principle of the residential redevelopment of the site has not been opposed in 

the previous refusals or dismissed appeals. As such, the release of the site for 

residential development is not considered to be a matter of contention when 

considering the recent planning history. It is also pertinent to note that the site 

is not subject to any formal designation within the emerging local plan and as 

such, its residential redevelopment would not conflict with either adopted or 

emerging land use based policy objectives.  

8.7 For the reasons outlined above officers are satisfied that the proposal would 

accord with key land use based policy objectives of the development plan. 

Furthermore, the provision of 82 additional residential units of which 58% 

would be family sized, would make an important contribution to the Boroughs 

housing targets and represents a significant positive element of the scheme in 

land use terms.  

8.8  Density  

 

8.9 Policy DC2 of the LDF states that planning permission will only be granted for 

new housing if a design led approach is adopted in determining the type, size 

and form of new development with regard to: 

 the type and size of new housing required to meet local and sub-
regional housing needs and create mixed and balanced 
communities; and 

 the densities detailed within the density matrix outlined in the policy 
which considers the Public Transport Accessibility Zone (PTAL) for 
the area. 

 

8.10 This site has a PTAL rating of between 1b (very poor) and 2 (poor).  The 

recommended density for development coming forward in such locations is 

between 30-50 units per hectare together with a parking provision of 2-1.5 

spaces per unit.  The London Plan however suggests a higher density of 

between 50-95 units per hectare (suburban setting) or 70-170 units per 

hectare (urban setting).  Whether this area is representative of an urban or 

suburban area is a question of judgement with the area exhibiting many of the 

features of both settings, as suggested in the London Plan. 

8.11 On the basis that this site has an area of 1.5ha, the development of 82 units 

represents a development density of 55 units per hectare.  This proposed 

Page 34



density therefore closely aligns with that anticipated by policy DC2 and falls 

well within the reccomended density for a suburban setting, as per Table 3.2 

of the London Plan.  Furthermore, the proposed density represents a 

significant shift from the 100 unit per hectare density proposed for both 

previously refused schemes. Whilst officers acknowledges that the density 

matrix is just one of many factors to be considered when assessing whether a 

site is capable of accommodating a certain quantum of development, it is 

considered that the subject proposals alignment with density guidance 

provides a clear indicator that the scheme has positively responded to the 

previous density based reason for refusal. In addition to compliance with 

density guidance officers note that the design quality, residential quality, car 

parking, servicing and impacts on amenity of a scheme are other key 

indicators as to whether any proposed density is capable of being supported. 

Such matters are considered in more detail within the relevant sections below.  

 

8.12 Design, Massing and Streetscene 

8.13 The supporting text to policy DC3 of the LDF details that the Council requires 

good design in all new housing developments in order to create attractive, 

safe, secure and high quality living environments which are sustainable and 

where people will choose to live.  Expanding on this, policy DC61 seeks to 

ensure that development proposals maintain, enhance or improve the 

character and appearance of the local area.  

8.14 Given that the employment uses to the east do not form part of this 

application, a key objective identified by the applicant in formulating the 

proposed site layout was to design a development which positively responded 

to both characters/areas.  With regard to this, the applicant has created a 

scheme, which seeks to continue the residential terraced character prevalent 

to the west and locate the slightly taller 3 and 4 storey flatted buildings where 

the site has a closer relationship to the Royal Mail building. This approach has 

enabled the proposal to exhibit prevailing character of low rise terraced 

housing in addition to enabling the provision of  communal greenspace within 

the centre of the development.  

8.15 Overall officers consider that the approach to site layout represents a 

successful response to the constraints of the site whilst ensuring the existing 

suburban character to the west of the site is carried through to the proposal. 

The inclusion of the three modestly proportioned flatted blocks within the north 

eastern and south eastern corners of the site provides a buffer and transition 

area between the Royal Mail Building and the low rise suburban setting 

provided by the remainder of the proposals and existing development to the 

west. The orientation of terraces running from east to west further supports 

Page 35



this approach by successfully ensuring the development does not attempt to 

create an uncharacteristic street to dwelling relationship along Sandgate 

Close. This approach to site layout successfully responds to concerns raised 

in relation to the use of 5 storey flatted blocks facing Sandgate Close within 

the previous refused schemes.  

8.16 In terms of Crow Lane and the existing street scene, as one travels from the 

town centre, the residential nature of the streetscene changes from the 

roundabout with Dagenham Road.  For a circa 330m stretch of road, there is 

very little active frontage on the northern side of the road, with Romford 

cemetery to the south.  Looking at this stretch of road in more detail, on the 

northern side of the road you first come to the gas holders; then the Royal 

Mail building; and then the site to which this application relates.  None of the 

aforementioned have a significant street appeal and a key objective of any re-

development of this site, for officers, has remained that a high quality frontage 

is achieved. 

8.17 When considered within the sites context outlined above  officers are satisfied 

that the proposed development would achieve a high quality frontage through 

the creation of private entrance doors to proposed terraced houses and 3 

storey flatted block (block A) units, new pedestrian footways through the site 

and new footways along Crow Lane and Sandgate Close. In addition to 

repairing and reactivating this frontage the proposal would provide modest 

building heights which would primarily extend up to two stories with the three 

storey flatted block at the junction between Crow Lane and Sandgate Close.   

8.18 In terms of building heights across the site, Block C would be the tallest 

element of the development, extending to four storeys.  Blocks A and B would 

project to a maximum height of 3 stories. As a starting point, these building 

heights represent a significant reduction when compared to the refused 

schemes which sought to incorporate flatted blocks which extended up to 5 

stories in addition to further additional height and massing across the site 

when compared to the subject application. When considering the 

development as a whole it is apparent that the prevailing height would read as 

two stories with some properties benefiting from steeply pitched roofs fitted 

with dormers to facilitate a purpose built loft level. This approach enables the 

schemes overriding character to read as two storey terraced housing, which in 

officers views represents a positive reflection and reinforcement of 

established local character.  

8.19 Further to the acceptability of the proposed site layout, height and massing, 

officers note that the detailed design of both the houses and flatted buildings 

provides well considered and visually coherent architecture. The proposed 

material palette seeks to utilise high quality and robust materials with two 

alternate types of buff brick to be used as the primary material. In order to 

Page 36



ensure this quality is maintained when the scheme is delivered a robustly 

worded condition is recommended. The successful balance between massing, 

architecture and materiality is demonstrated through the computer generated 

images provided in support of the scheme. 

8.20 For the aforementioned reasons it is considered that the development has 

successfully overcome the previous reasons for refusal under application ref. 

P1161.16 and ref. P0587.17. Officers are also satisfied that the significant 

revisions to the proposal ensures it complies with policies DC2, DC3, DC7, 

DC36, DC40 and DC61 of the LDF and policies 3.5, 5.3, 5.15, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 

7.5 and 7.6 of the London Plan with regard to density, scale, mass and 

design. 

 

8.21 Residential Mix and Affordable Housing 

8.22 Policy DC2, expanding on the above, details that the Council will, as part of 

any major residential development coming forward be seeking an indicative 

housing mix of: 24% one bedroom units; 41% two bedroom units; 34% three 

bedroom units; and 1% five+ bedroom units.   

8.23 Policy DC6 states that the Council will aim to achieve 50% affordable housing 

provision as part of new major housing development in the Borough.  In 

applying this target the Council, will through negotiation and agreement with 

the applicant, assess the suitability of on-site or off site provision for 

affordable housing the subsequent percentage that is sought with regard to: 

 site, size, suitability and viability; 

 the need to achieve and deliver a successful housing development; 

 availability of public subsidy; and any 

 other scheme requirements. 
 

8.24 In determining planning applications for private residential schemes, including 

sheltered housing, the Council will seek the maximum reasonable amount of 

affordable housing having regard to the borough-wise target and tenure need. 

8.25 The indicative mix of units does not strictly comply with the exact percentage 

splits outlined in policy DC2. Whilst this is noted, the scheme provides a 

design led response to the constraints of the site and previous reason for 

refusal, which has resulted in the scheme providing a majority of the proposed 

dwellings through family sized terraced housing. Given the pressing need for 

family housing within the borough, and whilst being cognisant of the need to 

positively respond to existing local character, Officers consider the high 

proportion of family housing to represent a significant positive element that 

weighs in favour of the scheme.   

Page 37



8.26 Further to the support afforded to the 69% family sized dwelling provision for 

the reasons outlined above, officers note that the emerging local plan seeks 

64 % of all new units to be 3 bedrooms. The proposal would align with this 

emerging policy position which reflects the strategic housing needs within the 

borough over the next plan period. 

8.27 With respect to affordable housing, the applicant has submitted a viability 

appraisal, which originally suggested that the development could not support 

any affordable housing.  Following independent review of the schemes 

viability, and as a result of negotiation by officers, the entirety of Block C has 

been offered as affordable housing. This offer has been made in part on an ex 

gratia basis given the agreed financial viability position reflected that 12 units 

could be provided. The 16 units would be offered in intermediate forms, 

including Discount Market Rent (DMR).   

8.28 When considering this offer due regard has been given to the policy 

objectives that seek a 50:50 split between affordable rent and shared 

ownership (intermediate), as outlined in the Housing Strategy 2014-17. Whilst 

the lack of affordable rented units is regrettable it is acknowledged that the 

overall number of affordable units that could be secured would reduce if the 

offer shifted away from being all intermediate. Furthermore, the intermediate 

housing would be first offered as a split between DMR and shared ownership, 

thereby meeting a wider spectrum of housing need. Officers are also mindful 

of the significant quantum of family housing being provided across the 

scheme, which would assist in meeting strategic housing need at a market 

level.  

8.29 For the reasons outlined above officers are satisfied that when considered as 

a whole, and in the context of the schemes viability, the subject application 

would accord with key policy objectives in relation to both unit mix and 

affordable housing provision.    

8.30 Quality of residential accommodation  

8.31 The 'Technical housing standards - nationally described space standards' 

document and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan set out requirements for the 

Gross Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a defined level of occupancy as 

well as floor areas and dimensions for key parts of the home. All the 

residential units within the development either meet or exceed the minimum 

space sizes. 

8.32 In terms of private amenity space, the Council's Residential Design SPD 

suggests that every home should have access to suitable private and/or 

communal amenity space in the form of private gardens, communal gardens, 

courtyards, patios, balconies or roof terraces.  In designing high quality 

amenity space, consideration should be given to privacy, outlook, sunlight, 

Page 38



trees and planting, materials (including paving), lighting and boundary 

treatment.  In this instance, all of the units proposed would have access to an 

acceptable quantum and quality of private amenity space. This private 

amenity space provision would be supported by the communal amenity space 

situated within the heart of the scheme.   This communal amenity area would 

also provide for the provision of play space which aligns with London Plan 

standards.   

8.33 In terms of internal living conditions for potential occupiers, officers welcome 

the fact that all proposed units would provide dual aspect accommodation as 

a minimum. By avoiding single aspect units and when considering the 

separation distances between proposed buildings officers are satisfied that an 

acceptable level of daylight, sunlight outlook and privacy would be afforded to 

future occupiers.  

8.34 With regard to accessibility at least 10% of the dwellings proposed would be 

constructed to comply with Part M4(3)(2)(a) of the Building Regulations - 

Wheelchair Adaptable Dwellings.  With the remainder of the dwellings 

constructed to comply with Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations - 

Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings, in compliance with that required by the 

London Plan. 

8.35 Turning to noise and air quality, the Council’s Environmental Health/Public 

Protection department have raised no objection to the development.  

Supporting information submitted with the application demonstrate that 

subject to appropriate glazing both internal and external areas would comply 

with appropriate standards and the 55dB guidance figure for amenity areas.  

As a safeguarding measure, the applicant has also sought to ensure all flats 

are mechanically ventilated.  Subject to recommended conditions ensuring the 

proposed mitigation measures are implemented and maintained for the 

lifetime of the development officers are satisfied that the proposals would 

remain acceptable in terms of key air quality and noise considerations.   

8.36 Further to the above, officers acknowledged the comments made by Royal 

Mail and consider that the combination of the proposed site layout and 

mitigation measures to be secured by condition,  ensures the development 

would not prejudice the ongoing operation of the Royal Mail sorting office.  

8.37 Secure by Design  

8.38 In terms of national planning policy, paragraphs 58 from the ‘’NPPF’’ 2012 

emphasise that planning policies and decisions should aim to ensure that 

developments create safe and accessible environments where crime and 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community 

cohesion.  Paragraphs 69 from the document then accentuates that planning 

policies and decisions should aim to ensure that developments create safe 

Page 39



and accessible developments, containing clear and legible pedestrian routes, 

and high quality public space, which encourage the active and continual use 

of public areas. 

 

8.39 The above strategic approach is further supplemented under Policy 7.3 on 

‘Designing out Crime’ from the ‘London Plan’ 2016 which indoctrinates 

measures to designing out crime so to ensure that developments reduce the 

opportunities for criminal behaviour and contribute to a sense of security 

without being overbearing or intimidating. In local plan policies terms, Policy 

CP17 on ‘Design’ and Policy DC63 on ‘Delivering Safer Places’ from LBH’s 

‘Development Plan Document’ 2008 falls in line with national and regional 

planning guidance which places design at the centre of the planning process.  

The above mentioned policy piece together reasoned criteria’s for applicants 

to adopt the principles and practices of SBD.  More detail on the 

implementation of the above policy is provided from LBH’s SPD on ‘Designing 

Safer Places’ 2010, this document which forms part of Havering’s Local 

Development Framework was produced to ensure the adequate safety of 

users and occupiers by setting out clear advice and guidance on how these 

objectives may be achieved and is therefore material to decisions on planning 

applications. 

 

8.40 The Metropolitan Police reviewed the submitted application and have 

confirmed that the proposal is capable of achieving secure by design 

accreditation. As such, the Metropolitan Police raised no objection subject to 

the recommendation that a condition is attached which stipulates that prior to 

the commencement of development the applicant shall be required to make a 

full and detailed application for the Secured by Design award scheme and 

thereafter adhere to the agreed details following approval. Officers concur 

with the conclusions of the Metropolitan Police and this condition has been 

recommended.   

 

8.41 Neighbouring Amenity 

8.42 Policy DC61, in addition to that detailed above, states that planning 

permission will not be granted should development result in an unacceptable 

amount of overshadowing, loss of sunlight/daylight, overlooking or loss of 

privacy to existing and new properties. 

8.43 When considering the proposals impact on neighbouring amenity it is 

pertinent to note that the previously refused schemes sought a significantly 

greater quantum of development across the site as a whole, however, no 

harm to neighbouring residential amenity in terms of loss of daylight, reduced 

outlook, privacy or overbearing impacts were identified.  

Page 40



8.44 The subject application retains generous separation distances between the 

proposed built form and nearest neighbouring residential gardens and 

windows.   For reference, the proposal would retain separation distances in 

excess of 30m when considering windows that directly face towards the 

development. The retained separation distances are further supported by the 

fact that the flatted elements of the scheme that extend to 3 and 4 stories are 

located furthest way from neighbouring residential properties. This approach 

provides a further safeguard for neighbouring residential amenity and ensures 

that existing residents to the west of the site would benefit from being 

adjacent to terraced housing, thereby continuing the established pattern of 

development prevalent within Beechfield Gardens and the terraced housing 

that occupies the northern side of Crow Lane to the west.    

8.45 Overall, officers are fully satisfied that the approach to site layout and massing 

represents a neighbourly and policy compliant form of development. This 

conclusion is supported by the representations received from neighbouring 

residential occupiers whom have confirmed their support for the proposals. 

This is a significant contrast to the objections received from neighbours in 

response to the previous refused applications and serves to further 

demonstrate how the applicant has made significant amendments to the 

scheme to address the previous reasons for refusal.  

 

8.46 Car Parking Provision & Highway Impact 

8.47 Sandgate Close becomes a private road just beyond the junction with Crow 

Lane.  Sandgate Close is a two-way single carriageway that has double-lines 

either side of the road.  It is understood that Royal Mail as part of their 

leasehold is not permitted to park along Sandgate Close although as a private 

road this is not managed or controlled by the Highway Authority. 

8.48 Vehicular access to the site is proposed at seven points, as part of the 

development proposals: 

 One from Crow Lane; and 

 Three  principal access points from Sandgate Close. 

 Three secondary access points from Sandgate Close. 
 

8.49 The Crow Lane access would only serve four car parking spaces and would 

provide no permeability to the rest of the site.   This replaces an existing 

access into the site in broadly the same location.  Of the three principal 

accesses proposed from Sandgate Close these all provide access/egress 

junctions serving the terrace houses and associated car parking areas. The 

Page 41



three additional secondary access points serve the individual car park areas 

for the proposed flatted blocks.  

8.50 A total of 130 car parking spaces would be provided across the site.  Of the 

spaces provided, 9 would be disabled bays and 20% would be provided with 

electric charging points; with a further 20% capable of being upgraded in the 

future.  In addition 156 secure bicycle spaces would be provided for residents 

in addition to 8 cycle parking spaces for visitors. The overall provision of car 

parking and cycle parking spaces equates to a ratio of 1.6 vehicle spaces and 

1.9 cycle parking spaces, this represents a compliant provision in respect of 

policies DC2 and DC33 of the LDF.  Further to this policy compliance the 

agreed heads of terms include a restriction on future occupiers applying for 

parking permits with this restriction providing a further safeguard in terms of 

any potential  parking stress.  

8.51 With regard to the above, staff nevertheless note that limited details have 

been provided in terms of management of spaces; and how spaces would be 

assigned to units and/or as visitor spaces.  It is therefore considered that 

should planning permission be granted, a parking management plan and 

strategy should be secured via a recommended condition. 

8.52 When considering potential highway impacts and congestion, it is noted that 

the Transport Assessment submitted by the applicant suggests that at 

weekday morning peak (8:00-9:00am),  7 vehicles would arrive at the site and 

25 depart.  In terms of evening peak (17:00-18:00pm), it is suggested 17 

vehicles would arrive and 8 depart.  With regard to impact, it is suggested that 

once traffic has passed through Sandgate Close and the junction with Crow 

Lane, the impact on the highway network would be negligible.  In terms of the 

actual junction (roundabout), it is suggested that the development would add 

to congestion but the junction would remain well within capacity.  

8.53 The numerical analysis outlined above supports the conclusion that the 

proposal would have no materially harmful impact on the highway network.  

Furthermore, it must be acknowledged that the previous refused schemes 

sought 68 additional dwellings compared to that currently proposed and no 

unacceptable highways impacts were identified in relation to these previous 

schemes. Within this context the subject proposal represents a significant 

reduction in terms of potential highways impacts.  

8.54 Environmental Issues 

Contaminated Land  

8.55 Given that this site is noted as potentially contaminated, and mindful of the 

former site use, the applicant has submitted a full geotechnical and geo-

environmental report and remediation strategy. The report submitted through 

Page 42



the results of the site investigation indicate that any re-development of the site 

has the potential for unacceptable risks to human health given the 

concentrations of hydrocarbons, PAH and asbestos within shallow soils.   

8.56 To mitigate such risks it is proposed to install a ventilated subfloor void or 

vapour resistant membrane in the buildings to the north of the site; install 

placement capping in soft landscaped areas; use appropriate water supply 

pipe material; and use an appropriate concrete mix for buried concrete to 

protect against sulphate attack. The Council's Environmental Health/Public 

Protection department has assessed that submitted and offered in terms of 

mitigation and subject to a condition requirement verification of the 

aforementioned being completed on-site they do not object to the proposal. 

8.57 Further to the above officers note that the previous applications did not give 

rise to any significant concerns in relation to contamination land subject to 

appropriate mitigation being employed. The approach taken to this application 

represents a continuation of this position and subject to recommended 

conditions officers remain satisfied that the scheme would accord with key 

contaminated land based policy objectives.  

Flood Risk and Drainage 

8.58 Policy CP15 of the LDF, in-part, details that new development should reduce 

and manage fluvial, tidal and surface water and all other forms of flood risk 

through spatial planning, implementation of emergency and other strategic 

plans and development control policies; have a sustainable water supply and 

drainage infrastructure; and avoid an adverse impact on water quality.  

Expanding on this policy DC48 states that development must be located, 

designed and laid out to ensure that the risk of death or injury to the public 

and damage from flooding is minimised whilst not increasing the risk of 

flooding elsewhere and ensuring that residual risks are safely managed.  

Policy DC51 goes on detailing that planning permission will only be granted 

for development which has no adverse impact on water quality, water 

courses, groundwater, surface water or drainage systems unless suitable 

mitigation measures can be secured through conditions attached to the 

planning permission or a legal agreement.  

8.59 This site is located within flood zone 1 with a low risk of fluvial flooding.  There 

are no historical records of flooding on the site.  With regard to run-off, 

assessments undertaken by the applicant suggest that the developed site 

would increase peak run-off rates and volume by around 5.6%.  This would 

however be off-set by the larger permeable area of garden/landscaping 

proposed as part of the development when compared to the hardstanding as 

existing.  Given the known site contamination issues, sustainable urban 

drainage in the form of soakaways and/or trenches are not appropriate in this 

Page 43



instance.  However, to off-set the increased run-off rate, permeable paving 

and cellular storage tanks are proposed to achieve an improvement compared 

to the existing situation.  Subject to suitable conditions to ensure the drainage 

strategy is implemented and maintained it is considered that the development 

complies with policy DC51. 

Trees & Ecology 

8.60 Policy CP16 of the LDF states that Council will seek to protect and enhance 

the Borough’s rich biodiversity and geodiversity, in particular priority habitats, 

species and sites.  This is a position supported by policy DC42 and DC58.  

Policy DC60 furthermore details that the amenity and biodiversity value 

afforded by trees and woodland will be protected and improved.  Policy 7.21 

of the London Plan expanding on this states that existing trees of value should 

be retained and any loss as a result of development should be replaced 

following the principle of 'right place, right tree'.   

8.61 The Council's Protection of Trees during Development SPD states that aged 

or 'veteran' trees found outside ancient woodland are particularly valuable for 

biodiversity and their loss should be avoided.  An Arboricultural Assessment 

has been submitted with the application which notes the TPO on the 26 x 

Poplar trees and one Silver Birch along the western boundary of the site.  The 

Assessment submitted has reviewed the quality of these and all other trees 

on-site and identified works necessary to facilitate the development and 

general good management.  The Assessment also suggests the removal of 

six trees  as these specimens are identified as being in poor condition such 

that any existing value would be lost within 10 years. Having reviewed this 

assessment officers concur with its conclusions and do not consider the loss 

of the 6 trees to be materially harmful to either ecology or visual amenity  

8.62 In terms of the other works proposed, it is noted that many of the Poplars 

would receive a crown lift. With respect to this element of the scheme, officers 

acknowledge that such works are considered good practice to ensure the 

ongoing health of a tree and as such is supported. Further, the scheme 

landscape proposals show numerous additional trees being planted.  Suitable 

conditions to ensure adequate tree protection measures during the 

development would nevertheless be necessary should planning permission be 

granted. 

8.63 In terms of ecology, whilst the site itself is not designated for any ecological 

interest or merit, it is noted that railway verge and Romford cemetery are sites 

of local ecological importance.  Given the existing site conditions; and mindful 

of the additional landscaping proposed as part of the development it is 

considered that subject to acceptable mitigation during the course of the 

Page 44



construction that the proposals would not give rise to any significant 

ecological impacts.  

Sustainability 

8.64 From a sustainability perspective, it is proposed that enhanced insulation 

would be installed in all walls, floors, roofs and windows to reduce thermal 

leakage; with all units proposed to be heated by individual gas combi-boilers 

with mechanical heat recovery ventilation.  Photovoltaic panels would 

furthermore be installed throughout the development to realise a policy 

compliant 35.57% reduction in CO2 emissions relative to Building 

Regulations. 

8.65 The approach to sustainability outlined above reflects that taken with the 

previous applications and officers maintain the position that the scheme 

accords with key sustainability based policy objectives. The key difference 

between the approach to sustainability taken with this scheme compared to 

the refused applications relates to the agreed carbon offset fund contribution 

of £154,548.00. This charge was not an adopted policy requirement when the 

previous applications were refused and therefore it should be acknowledged 

that securing this contribution would act to provide an enhanced level of 

environmental mitigation when compared to the previous proposals.   

8.67 Education  

8.68 Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (CIL 

Regs) states that a planning obligation may only constitute a reason for 

granting planning permission for the development if the obligation is: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

(b) directly related to the development; and 

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

  

8.69 Policy DC72 of the Council's LDF states that in order to comply with the 

principles as set out in several of the policies in the Plan, contributions may be 

sought and secured through a Planning Obligation. Policy DC29 states that 

the Council will seek payments from developers required to meet the 

educational need generated by the residential development. Policy 8.2 of the 

Further Alterations to the London Plan states that development proposals 

should address strategic as well as local priorities in planning obligations. 

8.70 In 2013, the Council adopted its Planning Obligations Supplementary 

Planning Document which sought to apply a tariff style contribution to all 

Page 45



development that resulted in additional residential dwellings, with the 

contributions being pooled for use on identified infrastructure. 

8.71 There has been a recent change to the effect of the CIL Regs in that from 6th 

April 2015, Regulation 123 of the CIL Regs states that no more than 5 

obligations can be used to fund particular infrastructure projects or 

infrastructure types. As such, the SPD, in terms of pooling contributions, is 

now out of date, although the underlying evidence base is still relevant and up 

to date for the purposes of calculating the revised S106 contributions. 

8.72 The evidence background to the SPD, contained in the technical appendices 

is still considered relevant. The evidence clearly show the impact of new 

residential development upon infrastructure - at 2013, this was that each 

additional dwelling in the Borough has a need for at least £20,444 of 

infrastructure. Therefore, it is considered that the impact on infrastructure as a 

result of the proposed development would be significant and without suitable 

mitigation would be contrary to Policy DC72 of the LDF and Policy 8.2 of the 

London Plan. 

8.73 Furthermore, evidence clearly shows a shortage of school places in the 

Borough - (London Borough of Havering Draft Commissioning Plan for 

Education Provision 2015/16-2019/20). The Commissioning report identifies 

that there is no spare capacity to accommodate demand for secondary, 

primary and early years school places generated by new development. The 

cost of mitigating new development in respect to all education provision is 

£8,672 (2013 figure from Technical Appendix to SPD). On that basis, it is 

necessary to continue to require contributions to mitigate the impact of 

additional dwellings in the Borough, in accordance with Policy DC29 of the 

LDF. 

8.74 Previously, in accordance with the SPD, a contribution of £6,000 per dwelling 

was sought, based on a viability testing of the £20,444 infrastructure impact. It 

is considered that, in this case, £6,000 per dwelling towards education 

projects required as a result of increased demand for school places is 

reasonable when compared to the need arising as a result of the 

development. 

8.75 It would therefore be necessary to require a contribution to be used for 

educational purposes. Separate monitoring of contributions would take place 

to ensure that no more than 5 contributions are pooled for individual projects, 

in accordance with CIL legislation. It is considered that a contribution equating 

to £6,000 per dwelling for educational purposes would be appropriate. 

8.76 In the event that planning permission is granted, this application as such 

would be liable for a £492,000 education contribution, in addition to any 

contribution under the Mayoral CIL.   

Page 46



 

9.0 Conclusions 

9.1 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account. 

Planning permission should be granted for the reasons set out above. The 

details of the decision are set out in the RECOMMENDATION. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATIONS
	6 PE/00508/2018 - SUNRISE, SERENA HOUSE
	7 PE/00507/2018 - NEW PLYMOUTH AND NAPIER HOUSE, NEW ROAD, RAINHAM
	8 PE/00213/2017 - JOINT VENTURE SCHEME (BRIDGE CLOSE, ROMFORD)
	9 APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION
	10 P1152.18 - LAND AT CROW LANE, SANDGATE CLOSE

